
 

 
 
Notice of meeting of  

 
East Area Planning Sub-Committee 

 
To: Councillors Hyman (Chair), Cregan (Vice-Chair), 

Douglas, Firth, Funnell, King, Moore, Orrell, Taylor and 
Wiseman 
 

Date: Thursday, 6 November 2008 
 

Time: 2.00 pm 
 

Venue: The Guildhall, York 
 

 
A G E N D A 

 
 

Please note, there will be no Site Visit for this meeting. 
 
1. Declarations of Interest    
 At this point Members are asked to declare any personal or 

prejudicial interests they may have in the business on this 
agenda. 
 

2. Minutes   (Pages 3 - 12) 
 To approve and sign the minutes of the last meetings of the Sub-

Committee held on 11th and 25th September 2008. 
 

3. Public Participation    
 At this point in the meeting members of the public who have 

registered their wish to speak regarding an item on the agenda or 
an issue within the Sub-Committee’s remit can do so. Anyone 
who wishes to register or requires further information is 
requested to contact the Democracy Officer on the contact 
details listed at the foot of this agenda. The deadline for 
registering is Wednesday 5 November 2008 at 5pm. 
 
 



 

 
4. Plans List    
 To determine the following planning application related to the 

East Area. 
 

a) 279 Huntington Road, York, YO31 9BR 
(08/00814/FUL)   

(Pages 13 - 31) 

 Erection of 3no. three storey and 1 no. two storey flat roof 
dwellings and 1 no. detached flat roof dwelling with attached 
double garage, with associated parking, landscaping and access 
road after demolition of 279 Huntington Road, on land to the rear 
of 277 to 281 Huntington Road (resubmission).[Huntington & 
New Earswick Ward] 

5. Urgent Business    
 Any other business which the Chair considers urgent under the  

Local Government Act 1972 
 

Democracy Officer: 
 
Name: Laura Bootland 

• Telephone – (01904) 552062 

• E-mail – laura.bootland@york.gov.uk 
 
 
 

For more information about any of the following please contact the 
Democracy Officer responsible for servicing this meeting  

• Registering to speak 

• Business of the meeting 

• Any special arrangements 

• Copies of reports 
Contact details set out above. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



About City of York Council Meetings 
 

Would you like to speak at this meeting? 
If you would, you will need to: 

• register by contacting the Democracy Officer (whose name and contact 
details can be found on the agenda for the meeting) no later than 5.00 
pm on the last working day before the meeting; 

• ensure that what you want to say speak relates to an item of business on 
the agenda or an issue which the committee has power to consider (speak 
to the Democracy Officer for advice on this); 

• find out about the rules for public speaking from the Democracy Officer. 
A leaflet on public participation is available on the Council’s website or 
from Democratic Services by telephoning York (01904) 551088 
 
Further information about what’s being discussed at this meeting 
All the reports which Members will be considering are available for viewing 
online on the Council’s website.  Alternatively, copies of individual reports or the 
full agenda are available from Democratic Services.  Contact the Democracy 
Officer whose name and contact details are given on the agenda for the 
meeting. Please note a small charge may be made for full copies of the 
agenda requested to cover administration costs. 
 
Access Arrangements 
We will make every effort to make the meeting accessible to you.  The meeting 
will usually be held in a wheelchair accessible venue with an induction hearing 
loop.  We can provide the agenda or reports in large print, electronically 
(computer disk or by email), in Braille or on audio tape.  Some formats will take 
longer than others so please give as much notice as possible (at least 48 hours 
for Braille or audio tape).   
 
If you have any further access requirements such as parking close-by or a sign 
language interpreter then please let us know.  Contact the Democracy Officer 
whose name and contact details are given on the order of business for the 
meeting. 
 
Every effort will also be made to make information available in another 
language, either by providing translated information or an interpreter providing 
sufficient advance notice is given.  Telephone York (01904) 551550 for this 
service. 

 

Agenda AnnexPage 1



 
Holding the Executive to Account 
The majority of councillors are not appointed to the Executive (38 out of 47).  
Any 3 non-Executive councillors can ‘call-in’ an item of business from a 
published Executive (or Executive Member Advisory Panel (EMAP)) agenda. 
The Executive will still discuss the ‘called in’ business on the published date 
and will set out its views for consideration by a specially convened Scrutiny 
Management Committee (SMC).  That SMC meeting will then make its 
recommendations to the next scheduled Executive meeting in the following 
week, where a final decision on the ‘called-in’ business will be made.  
 
Scrutiny Committees 
The purpose of all scrutiny and ad-hoc scrutiny committees appointed by the 
Council is to:  

• Monitor the performance and effectiveness of services; 

• Review existing policies and assist in the development of new ones, as 
necessary; and 

• Monitor best value continuous service improvement plans 
 
Who Gets Agenda and Reports for our Meetings?  

• Councillors get copies of all agenda and reports for the committees to 
which they are appointed by the Council; 

• Relevant Council Officers get copies of relevant agenda and reports for 
the committees which they report to;  

• Public libraries get copies of all public agenda/reports.  
 

Page 2



City of York Council Committee Minutes 

MEETING EAST AREA PLANNING SUB-COMMITTEE 

DATE 11 SEPTEMBER 2008 

PRESENT COUNCILLORS MOORE (CHAIR), CREGAN (VICE-
CHAIR), DOUGLAS, FIRTH, FUNNELL, HYMAN, 
ORRELL, TAYLOR, WISEMAN AND POTTER 
(SUBSTITUTE) 

APOLOGIES COUNCILLORS KING 

 
33. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 
Members were invited to declare, at this point in the meeting, any personal 
or prejudicial interests they might have in the business on the agenda. 
 
Councillor Funnell declared a personal prejudicial interest in plans item 4a 
as the applicant is known personally to her.  
 
 

34. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  
 
It was reported that there had been no registrations to speak under the 
Council’s Public Participation Scheme on general issues within the remit of 
the Sub-Committee. 
 
 

35. PLANS LIST  
 
Members considered a schedule of reports of the Assistant Director 
(Planning and Sustainable Development) relating to the following planning 
applications, outlining the proposals and relevant policy considerations and 
setting out views and advice of consultees and officers. 
 
 

35a 2 Hempland Drive, York, YO31 1AY. (08/01715FUL)  
 
Members considered an application for a two storey side extension, one 
and two storey rear extension and a detached garage. The application is 
an amendment to a previously approved scheme. The original scheme had 
a flat roof element where the roof of the teo storey side extension tied into 
the existing roof line. The new scheme removes this flat roof element and 
raises the existing hipped roof of the property by 450mm. Due to this 
height increase the amendment could not be accepted as minor and 
needed to be considered under this separate proposal. 
 
Councillor Funnell, upon seeing a name on the plans presented to 
Members, declared a personal prejudicial interest and left the room and 
took no part in the debate.  
 

Agenda Item 2Page 3



Representations in support were heard from the applicant Mr. Fahey who 
advised that advice had been taken from the architect and he had done his 
best to make the extension blend in with nearby properties. 
 
Councillor Moore moved approval and Councillor Firth seconded. 
 
RESOLVED:  That the  application be approved.1 

 
REASON:  In the opinion of the Local Planning Authority the  

proposal would not cause undue harm to interests of 
acknowledged importance, with particular reference  to 
the effect on the amenity and living conditions of 
adjacent occupiers and the impact on the street scene. 
As such the proposal complies with Policies H7 and 
GP1 of the City of York Council Draft Local Plan. 

 
 
 
 
 
Action Required  
1. To issue the decision notice and include on the weekly 
planning decision list within the agreed timescales.   
 
 

 
SL  

 
35b Applefields School, Bad Bargain lane, York, YO31 0LW 

(08/01875/GRG3)  
 
Members considered an application by Applefields School for the 
installation of a polytunnel within the school grounds. It would be located 
5m from the rear boundaries of detached residential properties. 
 
Officers outlined the application and reminded Members that residents with 
boundaries onto the school site had made representations regarding the 
proximity of the tunnel to their boundaries. 
 
Members debated whether a polythene tunnel to be used occasionally 
could be regarded as a structure that would impact on neighbour amenity. 
Members overall felt it was a good educational facility for the school and, 
were happy with the scheme, providing it was used mainly within school 
hours. 
 
RESOLVED: That the application be approved subject to the 

conditions listed in the report. 1 

 
REASON: In the opinion of the local planning authority the 

proposal, subject to the conditions listed above, would 
not cause undue harm to interests of acknowledged 
importance, with particular reference to visual amenity 
and the impact upon neighbouring property. As such 
the proposal complies with Policies GP1 and ED1 of 
the City of York Local Plan Deposit Draft. 

Page 4



 
 
 
 
Action Required  
1.To issue the decision notice and include on the weekly 
planning decision list within agreed timescales.   
 
 

 
SL  

 
35c 38 Rawcliffe Lane, York, YO30 5QB (08/01779/FUL).  

 
Members considered a full application submitted by Mr. Roger Armistead 
to alter and extend an existing single storey rear extension with 2no. small 
extensions, one being to the rear of the property and the second being at 
the side. 
 
RESOLVED:  That the application be approved subject to the 
conditions 
   listed in the report. 1 
 
REASON: In the opinion of the Local Planning Authority the 

proposal subject to the conditions listed in the report 
would not cause undue harm to interests of 
acknowledged importance with particular reference to 
the impact on neighbours and the effect on the 
streetscene. As such the proposal complies with 
Policy H7 and GP1 of the City of York Deposit Draft 
Local Plan. 

 
 
 
 
Action Required  
1. To issue the decision notice and include on the weekly 
planning decision list within the agreed timescales.   
 
 

 
SL  

 
35d Elvington Water Treatment Works, Kexby Lane, Elvington, York 

(07/02915/FUL)  
 
Members considered a full application by Ms. Stephanie Waldon for the 
erection of 50m high environmental monitoring mast and associated guy 
ropes for a temporary period of 18 months. 
 
The application was originally considered by Members at the Planning 
Committee held on 13 March this year, however the public consultation 
period still had 4 days to run and it was decided to approve the scheme 
subject to no additional objections being received. 
 
Officers updated that 4 more letters of objection had been received in the 4 
day period. No new issues had arisen as a result of these letters, but the 

Page 5



matter of the application being a danger to birds had been raised again. 
Officers confirmed that there is significant bird interest along the Derwent, 
however the mast would be offset to one side and would not obstruct the 
birds flight line along the river.  
 
RESOLVED: That the application be approved subject to the 

conditions listed in the report. 1 
 
REASON:  In the opinion of the Local Planning Authority the  
   proposal, subject to the conditions listed in the report,  

would not cause undue harm to interests of 
acknowledged importance with particular reference to 
the impact on the openness of the Green Belt, visual 
impact, the potential for renewable energy 
development, danger to birds, and local residential 
amenity, with particular regard to noise disturbance. 
As such the proposal complies with Central 
Government advice contained within Planning Policy 
Guidance note 2 (“Green Belts”) and Planning Policy 
Statement 22 (“Renewable Energy”) and Policies GB1, 
SP2, SP3, GP1 and GP5 of the City of York Draft 
Local Plan (4th set of changes) dated April 2005. 
 

 
 
Action Required  
1. To issue the decision notice  and include on the weekly 
planning decision list within the agreed timescales.   
 
 

 
SL  

 
35e Rose Cottage, Sutton Road, Wigginton, York, YO32 2RB 

(08/01866/FUL)  
 
Members considered an application for the removal of condition 3 of a 
previous permission comprising (1) conversion of pole barn to commercial 
store room including external alterations and (2) construction of single 
storey, commercial workshop of 216sqm. The buildings would be used in 
connection with the applicants light industrial engineering business. 
Condition 3 restricts the permission to the applicants only and requires the 
new workshop to be terminated at such a time as the applicants cease to 
occupy the premises. 
 
Officers updated that Condition 3 which was attached due to the personal 
circumstances of the applicant is in fact in conflict with the advice in 
Circular 11/95 and distributed a copy of Circular 11/95 to Members with the 
relevant text underlined. Members were advised that the site is within the 
Green Belt and would impact on the openness of the Green Belt which is 
why the application was recommended for refusal previously. 
 
Representations in support of the application were heard from the 
applicants agent who advised members Condition 3 had the effect of 
preventing lenders from financing the business. He asked that Members 

Page 6



me mindful to approve the application to remove the condition which would 
allow business to continue. 
 
Members debated whether their decision to go against the officer 
recommendation previously had been the right one, however members 
stated that they feared job losses at the site had the application been 
refused last time. Officers felt that Circular 11/95 still gave grounds for 
refusal.   
 
 
RESOLVED:  That the application be refused.1 
 
REASON: In the absence of the condition, the Local Planning 

Authority considers that there would be no very special 
circumstances to justify the granting of planning 
permission within an area of Green Belt and thus the 
proposal would be contrary to Central Government 
advice within Planning Policy Guidance note 2 “Green 
Belts” and policies GB1 and GB11 of the City of York 
Local Plan Deposit Draft.  

 
Action Required  
1. To issue the decision notice and include on the weekly 
planning decision list within agreed time scales.   
 
 

 
SL  

 
35f The Villa, Main Street, Elvington, York, YO41 4AG (08/01868/FUL)  

 
This application for the erection of 1no. dormer bungalow with attached 
single garage, which is  a revised scheme, was deferred for consideration 
at the following East Area Sub-Committee meeting on 25 September 2008 
to allow the  consultation period to expire. 
 
Members agreed that the application should be deferred to the next East 
Area Sub-Committee meeting. 
 
RESOLVED:  That the consideration of this application be deferred 
to  
   The Sub Committee meeting of 25 September.  
 
REASON:  To allow the consultation period to expire. 
 
 
 
Action Required  
1.To issue the decision notice and include on the weekly 
planning decision list within agreed timescales.   
 
 

 
SL  

 
36. CLIFTON HOSPITAL: OUTSTANDING SECTION 106 IN RELATION TO 

MANAGEMENT OF THE LANDSCAPE.  

Page 7



 
Members heard an update in relation to the Clifton Hospital site that 
detailed the discussions which have taken place with regard to the 
outstanding Section 106. Members were asked to note the fact that a 
number of meetings have taken place and that progress has been made in 
finalising Section 106.   
 
Officers updated that discussions are still being undertaken about the site. 
It was confirmed that the footpath transfer is currently being dealt with by 
City of York Council solicitors. Hedgerow management for the site is still 
being discussed and it was confirmed that a suitable grazier would need to 
be found to take on the site. A report will be prepared for January 2009 to 
update Members on the progress made. 
 
RESOLVED:  That the report and updates be noted by Members. 
 
REASON: To update Members on the work still required in order 

to achieve a satisfactory conclusion to this 
longstanding case.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
R MOORE, Chair 
[The meeting started at 2.00 pm and finished at 2.45 pm]. 

Page 8



City of York Council Committee Minutes 

MEETING EAST AREA PLANNING SUB-COMMITTEE 

DATE 25 SEPTEMBER 2008 

PRESENT COUNCILLORS MOORE (CHAIR), CREGAN (VICE-
CHAIR), DOUGLAS, FIRTH, FUNNELL, HYMAN, 
KING, ORRELL, TAYLOR AND WISEMAN 

 
37. INSPECTION OF SITES  

 
Site 
  

Attended by Reason for Visit 

St. Peters School Councillors Moore, 
Douglas, Wiseman, King, 
Hyman 

As a high number of 
objections have been 
received. 

The Villa, Main Street, 
Elvington 

Councillors Moore, 
Douglas, Wiseman, King, 
Hyman 

As the scheme is an 
amended scheme and 
there have been 
neighbour objections. 

 
 
 

38. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
Members were invited to declare at this point in the meeting any personal 
or prejudicial interests they may have in the business on the agenda. 
 
Councillor Firth declared a personal prejudicial interest in agenda item 3a 
as he is a friend of St. Peters School. He left the room and took no part in 
the discussion or decision on this item. 
 
 

39. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  
 
It was reported that nobody had registered to speak under the Councils 
Public Participation Scheme, on general issues within the remit of the Sub-
Committee. 
 
 

40. PLANS LIST  
 
Members considered a schedule of reports of the Assistant Director 
(Planning and Sustainable Development) relating to the following planning 
applications, outlining the proposals and relevant policy considerations and 
setting out the views and advice of consultees and officers. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 9



40a St. Peters School, Clifton, York, YO30 6AB (08/01868/FUL)  
 
Members considered a major full application by the Governors of St. 
Peters School for a multi use games area (MUGA) incorporating a non-
illuminated synthetic grass pitch, tennis and netball courts.  
 
Officers updated that further letters in objection to the scheme had been 
received referring to the traffic problems on Queen Annes Road and North 
Parade and that condition 3 had been amended so that Monday - Friday 
the end of use time was 20:00 instead of 18:00. A condition suggested by 
a local resident, preventing patrons of the MUGA parking in St. Olaves car 
park was considered by officers too difficult to enforce. St. Peters had 
indicated to Officers that the main car park for the school would be used as 
the car park for the MUGA.  
 
Members queried if the MUGA would be affordable and accessible to 
community users, Officers advised the school had offered the facilities for 
community use during holiday periods. 
 
Representations in objection to the scheme were heard from local 
residents who raised concerns regarding the increase in traffic using 
surrounding residential streets both during the construction of the MUGA 
and once it is completed and operational. A letter of representation was 
also tabled with the agreement of all Members from a resident unable to 
attend the meeting. 
 
Members commented that while they accept the neighbours concerns 
regarding traffic problems and St. Peters School, they had to consider the 
application itself on its merits and there was no planning reason for refusal. 
Members agreed that an additional condition to alleviate neighbours 
concerns regarding car parking, as suggested by officers, could be added 
to the decision notice. 
 
 
RESOLVED: That the application be approved subject to the 

conditions listed in the report and the following 
additional condition1 

 

  i)  Prior to the multi use games area hereby approved  
being brought into use, a management plan detailing 
the parking arrangements for users of and visitors to 
the MUGA shall be submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

 
  

ii)  Prior to the commencement of development hereby 
approved, cross section drawings of a scale no less 
than 1:500 showing the existing and proposed ground 
level of the Multi Use Games Area shall be submitted 
to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. The development shall be carried out in 
accordance with the approved plans. 

 

Page 10



REASON: In the opinion of the local planning authority the 
proposal, subject to the conditions, would not cause 
undue harm to interests of acknowledged importance, 
with particular reference to the impact on the 
openness of the Green Belt, the impact on the historic 
skyline of York, impact on Clifton Ings Green Wedge, 
neighbour amenity, protected trees, traffic generation 
and highway safety and impact on the setting of the 
Clifton Green Conservation area and nearby Listed 
buildings. As such the proposal complies with Policies 
GB1, SP2, SP3, GP1, NE1, H2 and HE4 of the City of 
York Local Plan Deposit Draft (4th set of changes) 
approved April 2005. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Action Required  
1. Issue the decision notice and include on the weekly 
planning decision list within the agreed timescales.   
 
 

 
SL  

 
40b The Villa, Main Street, Elvington, York, YO41 4AG (08/01868/FUL)  

 
Members considered a revised application for the erection of a 1no. 
dormer bungalow with attached single garage. 
 
Officers updated that the main change to the scheme is that an extra 
bedroom with en-suite has been added to the application and that since 
the report, an extra letter from a neighbour complaining of being 
overlooked had been received. 
 
Representations in objection were heard from a neighbour who raised 
concerns regarding the height of the proposed building, and stated that 
since the last application which neighbours were opposed, the new 
scheme is still too high and will overlook neighbouring properties. 
 
Representations in support of the application were heard from the 
applicants agent who advised that the footprint of the bungalow was 
almost identical to the approved scheme but the eaves height had been 
increased to 600. He advised that in relation to the neighbours who 
complained of being overlooked, in his opinion, the separation difference 
between the properties is,  sufficient. In summary, he stated that  changes 
made to the application were insufficient to warrant refusal. 
 
Members commented that the amendments to the application would result 
in an intrusive and over dominant form of development and supported the 
officer recommendation. 
 

Page 11



 
RESOLVED:  That the application be refused.1 
 
REASON:  In the opinion of the Local Planning Authority, the  

proposed dwelling would be located in close proximity 
to the garden boundary of surrounding properties, 
particularly Grange House and 1 and 3 Lorraine 
Avenue. It is considered that the increase in eaves 
height in comparison to the approved scheme would 
increase the mass and dominance of the proposed 
house to a degree that would make it unduly 
prominent and intrusive when viewed from these 
properties and have a detrimental impact on the 
established character and amenity of the local 
environment. As such the proposal fails to comply with 
Policy GP1 (criterion a, b, and l), Policy GP10 and 
Policy H4a of the City of York Local Plan 4th Set of 
Changes 2005. 

 
 
Action Required  
1. Issue the decision notice and include on the weekly 
planning decision list within the agreed timescales.   
 
 

 
SL  

 
 
 
 
R MOORE, Chair 
[The meeting started at 2.00 pm and finished at 3.00 pm]. 

Page 12



 

Application Reference Number: 08/00814/FUL  Item No: 4a 
Page 1 of 18 

COMMITTEE REPORT 
 
Committee: East Area Ward: Huntington/New Earswick 
Date: 6 November 2008 Parish: Huntington Parish Council 
 
 
 
Reference: 08/00814/FUL 
Application at: 279 Huntington Road York YO31 9BR   
For: Erection of 3 no. three-storey and 1 no. two storey flat roof 

dwellings  and 1 no. detached flat roof dwelling with attached 
double garage, with associated parking, landscaping and access 
road after demolition of 279 Huntington Road, on land to the 
rear of 277 to 281 Huntington Road (resubmission) 

By: Mr C Cook 
Application Type: Full Application 
Target Date: 27 May 2008 
 
1.0  PROPOSAL 
 
1.1 This is a full planning application to demolish 279 Huntington Road and to erect 4 
terraced dwellings and one detached dwelling.  Three of the terraced dwellings are 
three-storey and one is two-storey. The detached dwelling is two-storey and also 
includes an attached double garage. All of the properties are flat roofed and have a 
contemporary design.  The terrace of houses would be parallel to the river and the 
detached property at a right angle creating an 'L' shaped courtyard. 
 
1.2 The application site comprises 279 Huntington Road and the rear element of 
what would presumably have been the gardens of 277, 279a and 281 Huntington 
Road. The site is bounded to the west by the river Foss.  To the south is part of the 
rear garden of 275 and to the north part of the rear garden of 283 Huntington Road. 
 
1.3 The site is rectangular in area and proposed to have a new private access road 
on to Huntington Road.  The overall area is approximately 0.20 hectares.  The 
access strip to the site is approximately 8.2 metres wide. 
 
Planning History 
 
1.4 In 2001 a planning application (01/00533/FUL) to erect 3 large detached 
dwellings with associated double garages on a site that had the same boundary (with 
the exception of not including the rear garden of 281 Huntington Road) was refused 
by committee on the grounds of overdevelopment and because it was considered 
that the replacement of a house with an access road would detract from the visual 
amenity of the area. A subsequent appeal was dismissed. The Inspector raised 
particular concerns in respect to the impact of the access road on the security and 
amenity of adjoining neighbours and felt that the scheme was a 'contrived' 
overdevelopment which did not make the best use of land to the rear of Huntington 
Road.  She also raised concerns in respect to the position of the bin store. 
 

Agenda Item 4aPage 13



 

Application Reference Number: 08/00814/FUL  Item No: 4a 
Page 2 of 18 

1.5 In 2007 two planning applications were submitted to develop the current 
application site coupled with the adjoining land to the rear of 283 and 285 Huntington 
Road (07/0962 and 07/02588) (an additional 0.07 hectares).  The schemes were for 
9 and 10 houses respectively and included an adopted road access to Huntington 
Road.  Both were withdrawn.  Officers had raised several planning concerns 
including overdevelopment, the impact on trees, the impact on the setting of the river 
and the impact on the amenity of adjacent occupiers. 
 
2.0  POLICY CONTEXT 
 
2.1  Development Plan Allocation: 
 
 
 
City Boundary York City Boundary 0001 
 
DC Area Teams East Area (2) 0005 
 
Floodzone 2 Flood Zone 2 CONF 
 
Floodzone 3 Flood Zone 3  
 
 
 
 
2.2  Policies:  
  
CYGP1 
Design 
  
CYGP4A 
Sustainability 
  
CYGP7 
Open Space 
  
CYGP9 
Landscaping 
  
CYGP10 
Subdivision of gardens and infill devt 
  
CYGP15 
Protection from flooding 
  
CYNE2 
Rivers and Stream Corridors, Ponds and Wetland Habitats 
  
CYNE1 
Trees,woodlands,hedgerows 

Page 14



 

Application Reference Number: 08/00814/FUL  Item No: 4a 
Page 3 of 18 

  
CYH4A 
Housing Windfalls 
  
CYH5A 
Residential Density 
 
 
3.0  CONSULTATIONS 
 
3.1 INTERNAL 
 
HIGHWAYS (NETWORK MANAGEMENT) - No objections subject to conditions 
relating to the design of the junction and highway widths. 
 
COUNTRYSIDE OFFICER - No objections subject to provision for measures to 
encourage wildlife within the new development. 
 
LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT -  Generally supportive of the modern design and 
increased separation distance from the rivers edge. Reservations in respect to the 
"box" type design.  Surfacing and landscaping should be conditioned along with 
boundary treatment by the river. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION UNIT - No objections subject to conditions 
regarding assessing contaminants and methods of construction. 
 
ARCHAEOLOGIST - Watching brief required. 
 
YORK CONSULTANCY (DRAINAGE)  - No objections 
 
3.2 EXTERNAL 
 
PARISH COUNCIL - Object - The development is incongruous, there is insufficient 
car parking, the collection point for refuse is too far from the houses and main road. 
 
NEIGHBOURS - Representations received from 4 neighbours raising the following 
issues: 
 
Huntington Road is very busy with cycle lanes, a mix of junctions and many uses, 
the junction including its levels would create a hazard for neighbours, occupiers, 
pedestrians and cyclists. 
 
Buildings are out of character. 
 
It is unclear what landscaping is being proposed and retained. 
 
Inadequate information on proposed lighting, signage and boundaries along the new 
access road. 
 
Inadequate number of parking spaces. 

Page 15



 

Application Reference Number: 08/00814/FUL  Item No: 4a 
Page 4 of 18 

 
The refuse collection point will be used for parking and people loitering. 
 
Works to change ground levels levels could cause gardens to 'slide'. 
 
Discrepancies in respect to the width of number 279 shown on the plan and the 
measurement on site.  The boundary and outbuildings of 277 are not shown 
accurately 
 
Noise from the construction and demolition. 
 
Overlooking of gardens. 
 
Discrepancies on plans 
 
Would like clarification of proposed boundary treatment and planting. 
 
Concerned that the proposed gates will create more noise and pollution to adjoining 
properties. 
 
FOSS INTERNAL DRAINAGE BOARD - No objections subject to conditions relating 
to the rate of surface water discharge, development adjacent to the river and floor 
levels. 
 
ENVIRONMENT AGENCY - No objections in principle subject to conditions on 
surface water and finished floor levels. 
 
POLICE CRIME PREVENTION DESIGN ADVISOR - Advice offered in respect to 
landscaping.  The area recently has an issue with vehicle crime, however burglaries 
are low.  The new access road should not be permitted to reduce protection against 
burglaries.  Consider that the gates should improve security within the site. 
 
 
4.0  APPRAISAL 
 
4.1  Key Issues 
 
- impact on living conditions of adjacent occupiers 
- impact on visual amenity 
- quality of accommodation 
- parking and highway safety 
- sustainability 
- drainage 
- wildlife and landscaping 
- development potential of adjoining land 
- security 
 
4.2 Although the proposals are to develop the site with 5 houses the net gain in 
dwellings is 4 given that it includes the demolition of 279 Huntington Road.   The 
dwelling is being demolished in an attempt to create an adequate access into the 

Page 16



 

Application Reference Number: 08/00814/FUL  Item No: 4a 
Page 5 of 18 

site.  The site including the access road is 0.20 ha giving a density of 25 units to a 
hectare.  This is below the target for residential densities in urban areas, although 
given the long access and constraints of the site caused by the riverside setting it is 
considered that some flexibility should be applied in this case. 
 
4.3 Proposals that make better use of brownfield land for residential development 
accord with the general thrust of local and national planning policy subject to meeting 
specific criteria.  Policy GP1 of the City of York Draft Local Plan sets out criteria for 
development proposals, including: respect for the local environment: density, layout, 
scale, mass and design compatible with neighbouring buildings, space and character 
of the area and provision of adequate amenity space and wildlife habitat.  Policy 
GP10 states that permission for new development will only be granted for the sub-
division of existing gardens or infilling where this would not harm the character and 
amenity of the local environment.  Policy H4a generally permits residential 
development on unallocated land in accessible locations within the urban area where 
amongst other things it is of an appropriate scale and density to the surrounding 
development. 
 
4.4 Relevant national guidance includes PPS1: Delivering Sustainable Development 
and PPS3: Housing.  As the site is within Flood zone 2/3 the guidance within PPS25: 
Development and Flood Risk is also relevant 
 
The key issues are considered below: 
 
IMPACT ON LIVING CONDITIONS 
 
4.5 It is considered that there is sufficient separation between the proposed houses 
and adjoining properties to avoid unacceptable harm in respect to loss of light, 
outlook or privacy.  Typically distances between the proposed houses and the rear of 
existing homes is around 30 metres.    There will be some loss of light and privacy to 
adjoining gardens however their size is such that overall amenity levels will still be of 
a good standard. 
 
4.5 The main issue in respect to neighbours' living conditions is considered to be the 
impact of noise and disturbance through the creation of the proposed access road 
following the demolition of 279.  The road that is proposed to enter the site would be 
located on the site of 279 between the side elevations and gardens of 277 and 279a 
Huntington Road.  Both properties have their own narrow vehicular access between 
the house and proposed access road.  The proposed relationship would not be 
unlike those serving a number of small developments that have taken place 
elsewhere in the city and the local area. For example, in 2004 (04/01993) planning 
permission was granted for 7 dwellings following the demolition of 175 Huntington 
Road.  This created a small cul-de-sac development passing by the house and side 
garden of 177 Huntington Road.   
 
4.6 In the appeal decision in 2001 relating to the application site the Inspector made 
reference to the proximity of the access to adjacent houses and concern that it would 
give rise to unacceptable disturbance to residents on either side.  It is not considered 
that the current scheme is unduly different from the previous access arrangements, 
with the exception of the gated access.  However, it is considered that in the context 

Page 17



 

Application Reference Number: 08/00814/FUL  Item No: 4a 
Page 6 of 18 

of an urban area (and a site close to a busy road) that the additional noise and 
disturbance caused by cars travelling near the side of the houses and gardens would 
not in itself be so harmful to justify refusal subject to the road being hard surfaced 
and an appropriate boundary treatment created.  There would be some noise 
associated with the operation of the access gates, however, it would not be 
excessive. The access gates would also mean that the proposed access road could 
not be used as a parking area for nearby residents. 
 
4.7 The refused scheme incorporated an enclosed bin store adjacent to 277 which 
raised concerns in respect to noise and odours. The current scheme incorporates 
storage adjacent to the new dwellings with bins left in an unenclosed area closer to 
Huntington Road on the day of collection.    
 
IMPACT ON VISUAL AMENITY 
 
4.8 The proposal will have limited impact on Huntington Road given that it is a back 
land site.  It is not considered that the demolition of 279 Huntington Road is unduly 
detrimental to the character of the area providing the boundary treatment and 
landscaping of the new access road is to a good standard.  There will be some views 
of the development from areas of Foss Court and Waterdale Park, however, it is not 
considered that the development will be unduly prominent from these viewpoints.  
 
4.9 It is considered that the most significant elevation is that facing the river Foss.  
There is a public footpath running along the opposite bank with clear views of the 
application site.  The banks of the river Foss in the vicinity of the application site and 
heading north out of the city generally have a natural character with a backdrop of 
trees dominating the environment.  It is considered that any proposed residential 
development should seek to achieve an adequate balance between built 
development and a naturalised environment.  The proposed development is typically 
proposed to be set back about 15 metres from the rivers edge.  This is considered 
adequate to avoid overdevelopment.  The scheme is imaginative, utilising 
contemporary buildings and has been designed to try and harmonise with the site.  
The generous use of timber cladding will help to soften its impact.  The maximum 
building height is 8.2m, which is comparable to most two-storey development, 
however, the flat roofed design will make the scheme appear more bulky than a 
pitched roof development. Landscaping along the rivers edge can be conditioned 
and permitted development rights to erect fences, extensions and outbuildings 
removed to help ensure that the setting of the riverbank is protected in the future 
(conditions 6-9). 
 
QUALITY OF ACCOMMODATION 
 
4.10 It is considered that the proposed dwellings have a good standard of amenity 
with attractive views across the river.  The garden size for the four properties within 
the terrace is relatively short at 7 metres, however, the properties also have 
balconies. Because of the openness of the site the properties have good 'visual 
access' to surrounding land. Attached storage buildings are built within the rear 
garden. 
 
 

Page 18



 

Application Reference Number: 08/00814/FUL  Item No: 4a 
Page 7 of 18 

PARKING AND HIGHWAY SAFETY 
 
4.11 Highways officers have no objections to the scheme. Each of the dwellings now 
has 2 off-street parking spaces to meet the needs of occupiers and visitors.  It is 
considered that this is appropriate for the location and size of the houses. Attached 
cycle storage buildings are built within the rear garden. 
 
4.12 Because the access route to the cul-de-sac is straight and overlooked from 
Huntington Road and proposed dwellings it is considered that it creates a safe 
environment for pedestrian access.  The total width of the access route is around 8.2 
metres and adjacent dwellings are set off the boundaries.  This will prevent the 
entrance from feeling oppressive or unsafe.  Issues relating to road widths, visibility 
and lighting are covered by conditions 10-16. 
 
SUSTAINABILITY 
 
4.13  Policy GP4a of the Draft Local Plan requires the submission of a sustainability 
statement to demonstrate how the proposal addresses the criteria set out within the 
policy. In this respect, the applicant's agent makes the following points: 
 
- the site is within walking distance of local amenities and approx 15 minutes by 
cycle from York City Centre. There is also a good bus service. 
- the proposal provides family houses rather than apartments 
- commuted sums will be provided to enhance local facilities 
- the development will be constructed of renewable materials where possible, 
utilising timber frames and sheep's wool for wall cavities 
- energy efficient PVCu glazing will be used together with a micro combined heating 
and power unit 
- the terraced properties will reduce heat loss as a result of the reduced external 
envelope 
- low energy lighting, movement sensitive lighting and non-electric heating all 
combine to reduce power consumption 
- rainwater harvesting will be utilised for watering the landscaped area along the 
Foss 
- each dwelling will be provided with separate containers for household and green 
waste   
 
Condition 24 requires compliance with a Code for Sustainable Homes "Very Good" 
rating.   
 
DRAINAGE 
 
4.14 The proposed rear gardens are within flood zone 3.   Given that the ground 
levels rise up from the river the houses themselves would be within flood zone 2.  In 
accordance with the Council's Strategic Flood Risk assessment the applicant has 
included calculations to assess flood risk to and as a consequence of the proposed 
development.  These have been assessed by internal and external consultees and 
are considered acceptable.  Conditions 19-21 have been included relating to surface 
water storage and floor levels. 
 

Page 19



 

Application Reference Number: 08/00814/FUL  Item No: 4a 
Page 8 of 18 

WILDLIFE AND LANDSCAPING 
 
4.15 The application site has been surveyed by the Council's countryside officer and 
has relatively limited value for wildlife, however, given the potential importance of the 
riverbank as wildlife habitat it will be conditioned that further details are submitted in 
respect to its treatment and maintenance.  A condition has been included requiring 
features suitable for bat roosts and controlling the timescale for the demolition of 
outbuildings. 
 
4.16 It is important that the boundary with the river is left as undeveloped as possible 
and attractive planting incorporated where practical.  This aspect will be covered by 
condition, including taking away permitted development rights for fencing and 
outbuildings. The soft and hard landscaping on the Huntington Road side elevation 
will also be conditioned. 
 
DEVELOPMENT POTENTIAL OF ADJOINING LAND 
 
4.17 The previous two applications that were withdrawn and involved the 
construction of 9 and 10 dwellings respectively also included part of the rear gardens 
of 283 and 285 Huntington Road.  This area of land is in separate ownership to the 
land that is part of the current application for five dwellings.  The layout of the 
scheme will make it impractical to create an access through to the site from the 
proposed new highway from Huntington Road.  It is not considered that this should, 
however, justify the refusal on the grounds of creating potentially piecemeal housing 
development.  The two previous schemes set out to create a more comprehensive 
development but did not reach the stage where it was considered they could be 
recommended for approval.  It is considered that the current application is a 
reasonable use of land and that any proposals to develop the adjoining site should 
be considered on their merits.  It will be conditioned that no habitable room windows 
are located on the rear of the detached property to avoid the development 
unacceptably compromising future development.   
 
SECURITY 
 
4.18  Although not one of the reasons for refusal of the 2001 application, the 
Inspector expressed concerns about the implications of the development on the 
security of people walking to the development and also the impact of opening up the 
garden boundary of the two adjoining houses to the access road.  In an attempt to 
overcome these concerns the applicant has introduced gates to the front of the 
access road.  It is intended that the vehicular access gate be operated by remote 
control and the pedestrian gate will be lockable.  It is considered that these 
arrangements would create the impression that the road is private and deter many 
people from entering.  The orientation of the houses in the new scheme is such that 
four would look directly down the road and its boundary.  It is not considered that this 
relationship would encourage crime.  The Police Crime Prevention Officer has stated 
that auto crime is currently a problem in the area, but, burglary rates are low.  He has 
recommended that the perimeter security of the boundaries bordering the new 
access should be a priority. 
 
 

Page 20



 

Application Reference Number: 08/00814/FUL  Item No: 4a 
Page 9 of 18 

SECTION 106 CONTRIBUTIONS 
 
4.19 Play/Open space 
The development will lead to a net gain of 4 four-bedroom dwellings.  On sites of 
less than 10 dwellings a commuted sum will be required towards off site provision.  
Using the Councils guidance on commuted sums for open space that was approved 
in April 2007 a total contribution of £12,024 would be required for increasing access 
and provision for children's equipped play space, informal amenity space and 
outdoor sports facilities. 
 
4.20 Education 
No contribution required. 
 
4.21 Affordable Housing 
The site area and number of homes is below the number at which affordable housing 
is sought. 
 
 
5.0  CONCLUSION 
 
5.1 Proposals to make more efficient use of brownfield sites for residential 
development are in accordance with the general thrust of central government 
guidance. The current proposal is a contemporary scheme that would seek to 
respect the relationship with the river Foss. 
 
5.2 The Inspectors three reasons for dismissing the appeal related to the location of 
the bin store, the security risk from development and disturbance to neighbours.  
Bins are now proposed to be stored adjacent to the dwellings and only collected from 
the proposed access road. It is not considered that this would be unacceptable.  It is 
considered that the introduction of security gates and a suitable boundary treatment 
will avoid creating an environment in which property or individuals will be particularly 
vulnerable to crime. The Police Crime Prevention Design Advisor does not object to 
the scheme.  The development will result in additional vehicle and pedestrian 
movements at the side and rear of the two adjoining properties.  However, subject to 
suitable surfacing and boundary treatment it is not considered that the level of 
disturbance that would be created would go beyond that which would be considered 
typical of an urban area.   
 
5.4  It is recommended that  the application be approved. 
 
 
6.0  RECOMMENDATION:   Approve 
 
 
1  TIME2  Development start within three years  
 
 2  The development hereby permitted shall be carried out only in accordance 
with the following plans:- 
 
Plan 05:54:21 'F' received by the Local Planning Authority on 1 September 2008. 

Page 21



 

Application Reference Number: 08/00814/FUL  Item No: 4a 
Page 10 of 18 

Drawing 05:54:22 'C'  received by the Local Planning Authority on 12 June 2008. 
Drawing 05:54:23 received by the Local Planning Authority on 01 April 2008. 
Drawing 05:54:24 received by the Local Planning Authority on 01 April 2008. 
Flood Risk Assessment  NR/AD/27330-Rp001 dated July 2007/ 22 May 2008. 
 
or any plans or details subsequently agreed in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority as amendment to the approved plans. 
In respect to store design the elevations shown on drawing 05:54:22 c shall apply. 
 
Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure that the development is carried 
out only as approved by the Local Planning Authority. 
 
 3  Notwithstanding any proposed materials specified on the approved drawings 
or in the application form submitted with the application, samples of the external 
materials to be used shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority prior to the commencement of the development.  The 
development shall be carried out using the approved materials. 
 
Reason:  So as to achieve a visually cohesive appearance. 
 
 4  Notwithstanding the details shown on the approved drawings details of all 
means of enclosure to the site boundaries shall be submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority before the development commences and 
shall be provided before the development is occupied. 
 
Reason:  In the interests of the visual amenities of the area. 
 
 5  Notwithstanding any proposed materials specified on the approved drawings 
or in the application form submitted with the application, samples of the external 
materials to be used for the hardsurfacing of the site shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the commencement of 
the development.  The development shall be carried out using the approved 
materials. 
 
Reason:  So as to achieve a visually cohesive appearance and reduce surface water 
run-off. 
 
 6  No development shall take place until there has been submitted and approved 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority a detailed landscaping scheme which shall 
illustrate the number, species, height and position of trees and shrubs.  This scheme 
shall be implemented within a period of six months of the completion of the 
development.  Any trees or plants which within a period of five years from the 
completion of the development die, are removed or become seriously damaged or 
diseased shall be replaced in the next planting season with others of a similar size 
and species, unless alternatives are agreed in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. 
 
Reason:  So that the Local Planning Authority may be satisfied with the variety, 
suitability and disposition of species within the site. 
 

Page 22



 

Application Reference Number: 08/00814/FUL  Item No: 4a 
Page 11 of 18 

 7  Notwithstanding the provisions of Article 3 of the Town and Country Planning 
(General Permitted Development) Order 1995 (or any Order revoking or re-enacting 
that Order), development of the type described in Classes A - F of Schedule 2 Part 1 
and Class A of Part 2 of that Order shall not be carried out without the prior written 
consent of the Local Planning Authority. 
 
Reason:  In the interests of the amenities of the adjoining residents the Local 
Planning Authority considers that it should exercise control over any future 
extensions or alterations which, without this condition, may have been carried out as 
"permitted development" under the above classes of the Town and Country Planning 
(General Permitted Development) Order 1995. 
 
 8  Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General 
Permitted Development) Order 1995 (or any order revoking or re-enacting that 
Order), unless otherwise agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority no 
openings shall be created in the external elevations of the buildings other than those 
shown on the approved plans. 
 
Reason:  To protect neighbours' living conditions. 
 
 9  Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General 
Permitted Development) Order 1995 (or any order revoking or re-enacting that 
Order), unless otherwise agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority the 
windows in the northern elevation of the detached dwelling (unit 5) shall at all times 
be obscure glazed to a standard equivalent to Pilkington Glass level 3 or above and 
remain fixed shut. 
 
Reason:  In the interests of the amenities of occupants of adjacent residential 
properties. 
 
10  Details of the proposed entrance gates shown on drawing 05:54:21 F shall be 
submitted to and agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority. The gates shall 
be erected in accordance with the agreed details prior to the occupation of the 
dwellings and the gates shall be maintained in a fully efficient working order unless 
otherwise agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority. 
 
Reason:  In order to provide a secure environment for future occupiers and 
occupiers of adjacent dwellings. 
 
11  Prior to the development coming into use, all areas used by vehicles shall be 
surfaced, sealed and positively drained within the site, in accordance with details 
which have been previously submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. 
 
Reason:  To prevent the egress of water and loose material onto the public highway. 
 
12  The development shall not be begun until details of the junction between the 
internal access road and the highway have been approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority, and the development shall not come into use until that junction 
has been constructed in accordance with the approved plans. 

Page 23



 

Application Reference Number: 08/00814/FUL  Item No: 4a 
Page 12 of 18 

 
Reason:  In the interests of road safety. 
 
13  The building shall not be occupied until the areas shown on the approved 
plans for parking and manoeuvring of vehicles (and cycles, if shown) have been 
constructed and laid out in accordance with the approved plans, and thereafter such 
areas shall be retained solely for such purposes. 
 
Reason:  In the interests of highway safety. 
 
14  No part of the site shall come into use until the turning areas have been 
provided  in accordance with the approved plans. Thereafter the turning areas shall 
be retained free of all obstructions and used solely for the intended purpose. 
 
Reason:   To enable vehicles to enter and leave the site in a forward gear thereby 
ensuring the safe and free passage of traffic on the public highway. 
 
15  Prior to the development commencing details of the measures to be employed 
to prevent the egress of mud, water and other detritus onto the public highway, and 
details of the measures to be employed to remove any such substance from the 
public highway shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. Such measures as shall have been approved shall be employed and 
adhered to at all times during construction works. 
 
Reason:  To prevent the egress of water and loose material creating a hazard on the 
public highway. 
 
16  Vehicular access to the site shall at all times have a minimum width of 3.7m 
with a height clearance of 4.5m.  Details of the design of this access, together with 
associated sightlines and streetlighting, shall be submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority prior to the commencement of the development. 
 
Reason:  To ensure that their is access for emergency vehicles. 
 
17  Notwithstanding the approved details, prior to the occupation of the 
accommodation further details of the proposed refuse collection point shall be 
submitted to and agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority.  The collection 
point shall be implemented in accordance with the plans prior to the occupation of 
the accommodation and maintained as agreed unless otherwise agreed in writing 
with the Local Planning Authority. 
 
Reason: To protect the amenity and living conditions of adjacent occupiers 
 
18  No work shall commence on site until the applicant has secured the 
implementation of a programme of archaeological work (a watching brief on all 
ground works by an approved archaeological unit) in accordance with a specification 
supplied by the Local Planning Authority.  This programme and the archaeological 
unit shall be approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority before development 
commences. 
 

Page 24



 

Application Reference Number: 08/00814/FUL  Item No: 4a 
Page 13 of 18 

Reason:  The site lies within an Area of Archaeological Importance and the 
development will affect important archaeological deposits which must be recorded 
during the construction programme. 
 
19  No development approved by this permission shall be commenced until a 
scheme for the on-site storage of surface water and its discharge from the site at a 
controlled rate has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. The scheme shall be implemented in its entirety prior to the first 
occupation of the development and shall be maintained thereafter. The rate of 
discharge shall not exceed that of a "greenfield site", i.e. 1.4 lit/sec/ha.   
  
Reason: To prevent the increased risk of flooding and prevent damage to 
landscaping. 
 
20  All drainage routes through the site shall be maintained both during and after 
completion of the works on the site. 
 
Provisions shall be made to ensure that upstream and downstream riparian owners 
and those areas that are presently served by any drainage routes passing through or 
adjacent to the site are not adversely affected by the development. 
 
Drainage routes shall include all methods by which water may be transferred through 
the site and shall include such systems as "ridge and furrow" and "overland flows".    
 
Reason: To avoid increasing the risk of flooding 
 
 
21  Finished floor levels shall be set no lower than 11.40 AOD. 
 
Reason 
 
To protect the dwellings from potential flood flow routes through the site 
 
22  Trees shown to be retained and/or subject to a tree preservation order (TPO) 
shall be protected during the development of the site by the following measures: - 
Prior to site clearance, site preparation, installation of utilities, building or other 
development operations, including the importing of materials and any excavations, 
protective fencing to BS5837: 2005 shall be erected around all existing trees shown 
to be retained. Before commencement on site the protective fencing line shall be 
shown on a plan and agreed with the local authority and subsequently adhered to at 
all times during development to create exclusion zones. None of the following 
activities shall take place within the exclusion zone: excavation, raising of levels, 
storage of any materials or top soil, lighting of fires, parking or manoeuvring of 
vehicles, mechanical cultivation under the canopy spread of retained trees. There 
shall be no site huts, no marketing offices, no mixing of cement, no disposing of 
washings, no stored fuel, no new trenches, pipe runs for services or drains. The 
fencing shall remain secured in position throughout the construction process 
including the implementation of landscape works. A notice stating 'tree protection 
zone - do not remove' shall be attached to each section of fencing. 
 

Page 25



 

Application Reference Number: 08/00814/FUL  Item No: 4a 
Page 14 of 18 

Reason: To ensure protection of existing trees before, during and after development 
which are covered by a Tree Preservation Order and/or make a significant 
contribution to the amenity of the area and/or development. 
 
23  No development shall take place until details have been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Council of what measures are to be provided to within the 
design of the new buildings/conversion to accommodate bats. The   works shall be 
completed in accordance with the approved details. Features suitable for 
incorporation for this group include the use of special tiles, bricks, soffit boards, bat 
boxes. etc.  
 
Reason:  To take account of and enhance the habitat for bats. 
 
24  At the soonest available opportunity, and in any event prior to the completion 
of the development, the developer shall submit a completed "Sustainable Design and 
Construction" statement for the development. The development hereby approved 
shall achieve a Code for Sustainable Homes Level 3***, and if this is not achieved, 
the developer shall demonstrate the changes that will be made to the development in 
order to achieve this standard unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. 
 
Reason: In the interests of sustainable development. 
 
 
25  A desk top study, site investigation (which will assist with foundation choice) 
and gas monitoring shall be carried out prior to the commencement of development.  
This shall include: 
 
(i) A desk study identifying any potentially contaminative uses which have or are 
currently occurring on site shall be submitted to and approved by the local planning 
authority prior to development of the site.   
 
Reason:  to protect the health & safety of workers and future occupants of the site. 
 
(ii) Prior to the commencement of development a scheme for monitoring land fill 
gases shall be designed and provided to the Local Planning Authority for approval. 
 
Reason:  to protect the health & safety of workers and future occupants of the site. 
 
(iii) Gas monitoring shall be carried out on the site in accordance with the 
approved scheme, to consider the effect of any landfill gas migration. The survey 
shall be undertaken and the results submitted to the local planning authority prior to 
any works being carried out on the site. 
 
Reason: to determine if landfill gasses are being emitted from the site which may be 
detrimental to the health and safety of the occupants.  
   
(iv)  Based on the information from the gas survey, proposals for a gas protection 
regime shall be submitted to and approved by the local planning authority prior to the 
commencement of any development on site. 

Page 26



 

Application Reference Number: 08/00814/FUL  Item No: 4a 
Page 15 of 18 

 
Reason: to protect the health and safety of the occupants. 
 
(v)  A site investigation shall be undertaken based upon the findings of the desk 
study.  The investigation shall be carried out in accordance with BS10175: 
Investigation of potentially contaminated land:code of practice.  The results of the 
investigation shall be submitted to and approved by the local planning authority in 
writing prior to any development commencing on site. 
 
Reason:  to protect the health & safety of workers and future occupants of the site. 
 
(vi)   A risk based remedial strategy shall be developed based upon the findings of 
the site investigation.  The remedial strategy shall be submitted to and approved by 
the local planning authority in writing.  The approved strategy shall be fully 
implemented prior to any development commencing on site. 
 
Reason:  to protect the health & safety of workers and future occupants of the site. 
 
Informative:  the remedial strategy shall have due regard for UK adopted policy on 
risk assessment and shall be developed in full consultation with the appropriate 
regulator(s). 
 
(vii)   A validation report shall be submitted to and approved by the local planning 
authority, detailing sample locations and contaminant concentrations prior to any 
development commencing on site. 
 
Reason:  to protect the health & safety of workers, future occupants of the site,  and 
the integrity of any proposed underground services.   
 
(viii)    A timetable of proposed remedial works shall be submitted to the local 
planning authority prior to any works being undertaken on site. 
 
Reason: To protect the health and safety of workers on site, occupiers of the site and 
the integrity of any proposed underground services.   
 
26  No development shall commence unless and until details of provision for 
public open space facilities or alternative arrangements have been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The Open space shall thereafter 
be provided in accordance with the approved scheme or the alternatives 
arrangements agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority and thereafter 
implemented, prior to first occupation of the development. 
 
Reason:   In order to comply with the provisions of Policy L1c of the Development 
Control Local Plan which requires that all new housing sites make provision for the 
open space needs of future occupiers. 
 
INFORMATIVE: 
The alternative arrangements of the above condition could be satisfied by the 
completion of a planning obligation made under Section 106 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 by those having a legal interest in the application site, 

Page 27



 

Application Reference Number: 08/00814/FUL  Item No: 4a 
Page 16 of 18 

requiring a financial contribution towards off site provision of open space. The 
obligation should provide for a financial contribution calculated at £12,024. 
 
No development can take place on this site until the public open space has been 
provided or the Planning Obligation has been completed and you are reminded of 
the local planning authority's enforcement powers in this regard. 
 
27  Any piling operations shall be carried out using the quietest practicable 
method available.  Local residents should be notified of the dates, times, likely 
duration and works to be undertaken.  Details of the piling method chosen must be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to any 
works being carried out. 
 
reason:  To protect the amenity of nearby residents. 
 
28  All demolition and construction works and ancillary operations, including 
deliveries to and despatch from the site shall be 
confined to the following hours: 
 
 Monday to Friday  08.00 to 18.00 
 Saturday    09.00 to 13.00  
 Not at all on Sundays and Bank Holidays. 
 
 
7.0  INFORMATIVES: 
Notes to Applicant 
 
 1. REASON FOR APPROVAL 
 
In the opinion of the Local Planning Authority the proposal, subject to the conditions 
listed above, would not cause undue harm to interests of acknowledged importance, 
with particular reference to: 
 
- impact on living conditions of adjacent occupiers 
- impact on streetscene 
- impact on visual amenity 
- quality of accommodation 
- parking and highway safety 
- sustainability 
- drainage and flood risk 
- wildlife and landscaping 
- development potential of adjoining land 
- security  
 
As such the proposal complies with Policies GP1, GP4a, GP7, GP9, GP10, GP15a, 
NE2, NE1, NE7, H4a, H5a of the City of York Local Plan Deposit Draft. 
 2. A strip of land 9 metres wide adjacent to the top of both banks of all watercourses 
shall be kept clear of all new buildings and structures (including gates, walls, fences 
and trees) unless agreed otherwise in writing with the Local Planning Authority in 
consultation with the Internal Drainage Board.  Ground levels must not be raised 

Page 28



 

Application Reference Number: 08/00814/FUL  Item No: 4a 
Page 17 of 18 

within this area.   Access arrangements should be agreed with the Internal Drainage 
Board. 
 3. If, as part of the proposed development, the applicant encounters any suspect 
contaminated materials in the ground, the Contaminated Land Officer at the council's 
Environmental Protection Unit should be contacted immediately.  In such cases, the 
applicant will be required to design and implement a  remediation scheme to the 
satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority.  Should City of York Council become 
aware at a later date of suspect contaminated materials which have not been 
reported as described above, the council may consider taking action under Part IIA 
of the Environmental Protection Act 1990. 
 
The developer's attention should also be drawn to the various requirements for the 
control of noise on construction sites laid down in the Control of Pollution Act 1974.  
In order to ensure that residents are not adversely affected by air pollution and noise, 
the following guidance should be noted and acted upon. Failure to do so could result 
in formal action being taken under the Control of Pollution Act 1974: 
 
(i) The work shall be carried out in such a manner so as to comply with the 
general recommendations of British Standards BS  5228: Part 1: 1997, a code of 
practice for "Noise and Vibration Control on Construction and Open  Sites" and in 
particular  Section 10 of Part 1 of the code entitled "Control of noise and 
vibration". 
 
(ii) All plant and machinery to be operated, sited and maintained in order to 
minimise disturbance.  All items of machinery  powered by internal  combustion 
engines must be properly silenced and/or fitted with effective and well-maintained 
 mufflers  in accordance with manufacturers instructions. 
 
(iii) The best practicable means, as defined by Section 72 of the Control of 
Pollution Act 1974, shall be employed at all times, in  order to minimise noise 
emissions. 
 
(iv) All reasonable measures shall be employed in order to control and minimise 
dust emissions, including sheeting of vehicles  and use of water for dust 
suppression. 
 
(v) There shall be no bonfires on the site. 
 4. INFORMATIVE:  
You are advised that prior to starting on site consent will be required from the 
Highway Authority for the works being proposed, under the Highways Act 1980 
(unless alternatively specified under the legislation or Regulations listed below).  For 
further information please contact the officer named: 
 
Works in the highway - Section 171/Vehicle Crossing - Section 184 - Stuart 
Partington (01904) 551361 
 
 5. FOR INFORMATION 
If bats are discovered during the course of the work, then work should cease and 
Natural England consulted before continuing. 
 6. INFORMATIVE 

Page 29



 

Application Reference Number: 08/00814/FUL  Item No: 4a 
Page 18 of 18 

Future occupiers should be made aware that because of the sensitivity of the site 
permitted development rights to erect extensions, outbuildings, new openings, 
fencing  have been removed and as such planning permission will always be 
required for such developments.  All occupiers are recommended to check with the 
Local Planning Authority prior to undertaking any alterations or extensions. 
 
Contact details: 
Author: Neil Massey Development Control Officer (Wed/Thurs/Fri) 
Tel No: 01904 551657 
 

Page 30



Produced using ESRI (UK)'s  MapExplorer 2.0 - http://www.esriuk.com

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey map with the permission

of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown

Copyright 2000.

Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may

lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

SLA Number

Organisation

Department

Comments

Date

Scale :

Not Set

279 Huntington Road

08/00814/FUL

Not Set

Not Set

27 October 2008

Application Site

1:1250

Page 31


	Agenda
	
	2 Minutes
	Minutes , 25/09/2008 East Area Planning Sub-Committee

	4a 279 Huntington Road, York, YO31 9BR (08/00814/FUL)
	08 00814 FUL


